
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	

Entry 1 School Information and Cover Page 

(New schools that were not open for instruction for 

the 2018-19 school year are not required to complete 

or submit an annual report this year). 
Created: 07/11/2019 • Last updated: 07/24/2019 

Please be advised that you will need to complete this cover page (including signatures) before all of the 

other tasks assigned to you by your authorizer are visible on your task page. While completing this cover 
page task, please ensure that you select the correct authorizer (as of June 30, 2019) or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

BASIC INFORMATION 

a. SCHOOL NAME ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

(Select name from the drop down menu) 

a1. Popular School Name (No response) 
(Optional) 

b. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of SUNY Authorized Charter School 
June 30th, 2019) 

Please select the correct authorizer as of 
June 30, 2019 or you may not be 

assigned the correct tasks. 

c. DISTRICT / CSD OF LOCATION NYC CSD 7 

d. DATE OF INITIAL CHARTER 02/2009 

e. DATE FIRST OPENED FOR 09/2009 

INSTRUCTION 

h. SCHOOL WEB ADDRESS (URL) www.alcsbronx.org 
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i. TOTAL MAX APPROVED 525 

ENROLLMENT FOR THE 2018-19 

SCHOOL YEAR (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

j. TOTAL STUDENT ENROLLMENT 480 

ON JUNE 30, 2019 (exclude Pre-K 

program enrollment) 

k. GRADES SERVED IN SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 (does not include Pre-K program 

students) 
Check all that apply 

Grades Served K, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 

l1. DOES THE SCHOOL CONTRACT No 

WITH A CHARTER OR 

EDUCATIONAL MANAGEMENT 

ORGANIZATION? 

FACILITIES INFORMATION 

m. FACILITIES 

Does the school maintain or operate multiple sites? 

Yes, 2 sites 

School Site 1 (Primary) 
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m1. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide the following information for site 1. 

Physical Address 

Site 1 

Phone Number 

etc.) 

NYC CSD 7 K 4 

m1a. Please provide the contact information for Site 1. 

Name 

School 
Leader Leena Varghese 

Operati
onal 
Leader 

Britny Rivera 

Complia 
nce 
Contact 

Leena Varghese 

Complai 
nt 
Contact 

Leena Varghese 

DASA 
Coordin 
ator 

Leena Varghese 

Phone 
Contact 
for After 
Hours 

Leena Varghese 

Emerge
ncies 

m1b. Is site 1 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

District/CSD Grades Served Receives Rental 
at Site (K 5, 6 9, Assistance for 

Work Phone Alternate Phone 

Co located Space 

Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

No 

Email Address 
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m1c. Please list the terms of your current co-location. 

Date school 
will leave 
current co
location 

Is school 
working with
NYCDOE to 
expand into 
current 
space? 

If so, list year
expansion
will occur. 

Is school 
working with
NYCDOE to 
move to 
separate
space? 

If so, list the 
proposed
space and
year planned
for move 

School at Full 
Capacity at
Site 

N/A,Site 1 Permanent 

IF LOCATED IN PRIVATE SPACE IN NYC OR IN DISTRICTS OUTSIDE NYC 

m1d. Upload a current Certificate of Occupancy (COO) and the annual Fire Inspection 

Report for school site 1 if located in private space in NYC or located outside of NYC . 

Site 1 Certificate of Occupancy (COO) 

(No response) 

Site 1 Fire Inspection Report 

(No response) 

School Site 2 

m2. SCHOOL SITES 

Please provide the following information for site 2. 

Physical Address Phone Number District/CSD 

Site 2 
470 Jackson 
Avenue 
Bronx NY 10455 

NYC CSD 7 

Grades Served Receives Rental 
at Site (K 5, 6 9,
etc.) 

Assistance for 
Which Grades (If
yes, enter the
appropriate
grades. If no,
enter No). 

5 8 No 
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m2a. Please provide the contact information for Site 2. 

Name Work Phone Alternate Phone Email Address 

School Jaime Kennedy Leader 

Operati
onal Britny Rivera 
Leader 

Complia 
nce Leena Varghese 
Contact 

Complai 
nt Leena Varghese 
Contact 

DASA 
Coordin Leena Varghese 
ator 

Phone 
Contact 
for After Leena Varghese Hours 
Emerge
ncies 

m2b. Is site 2 in public (co-
located) space or in private 

space? 

Co located Space 

m2c. Please list the terms of your current co-location. 

Date school Is school 
will leave 
current co

working with
NYCDOE to 

location expand into 
current 
space? 

Site 2 
N/A,
Permanent 

If so, list year
expansion
will occur. 

Is school If so, list the School at Full 
working with proposed Capacity at
NYCDOE to space and Site 
move to year planned
separate for move 
space? 

CHARTER REVISIONS DURING THE 2018-19 SCHOOL YEAR 
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n1. Were there any revisions to Yes 

the school’s charter during the 

2018-19 school year? (Please 

include approved or pending 

material and non-material 
charter revisions). 

n2. Summary of Charter Revisions 

Category (Select Best
Description) 

Specific Revision
(150 word limit) 

Change in Maximum1 Approved Enrollment 
Additional classes 
were added 

2 

3 

4 

5 

More revisions to add? No 

ATTESTATION 

Date Approved by
BOT (if applicable) 

Date Approved by
Authorizer (if
applicable) 

6/10/19 

o. Individual Primarily Responsible for Submitting the Annual Report. 

Name Leena Varghese 

Position Principal 

Phone/Extension 

Email 
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p. Our signatures (Executive Director/School Leader/Head of School and Board 

President) below attest that all of the information contained herein is truthful and 

accurate and that this charter school is in compliance with all aspects of its charter, 
and with all pertinent Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and rules. We 

understand that if any information in any part of this report is found to have been 

deliberately misrepresented, that will constitute grounds for the revocation of our 

charter. Check YES if you agree and then use the mouse on your PC or the stylist on 

your mobile device to sign your name). 

Yes 

Signature, Head of Charter School 

Signature, President of the Board of Trustees 

Date 2019/07/24 

Thank you. 
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Entry 2 NYS School Report Card Link 
Last updated: 07/11/2019 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

1. CHARTER AUTHORIZER (As of 
June 30th, 2019) 

(For technical reasons, please re select 
authorizer name from the drop down 

menu). 

2. NEW YORK STATE REPORT 

CARD 

Provide a direct URL or web link 

to the most recent New York 

State School Report Card for the 

charter school (See 

https://reportcards.nysed.gov/). 

(Charter schools completing year 
one will not yet have a School 
Report Card or link to one. Please 

type "URL is not available" in the 

space provided.) 

SUNY Authorized Charter School 

https://data.nysed.gov/essa.php? 

year=2018&instid=800000064236 
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Academic Leadership Charter 
School 

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY 
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PROGRESS REPORT 
Submitted to the SUNY Charter Schools Institute 

on: 

September 23, 2019, 2019 

By Leena Varghese__ 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Leena Varghese, Principal prepared this 2018-19 Accountability Progress Report on behalf 
of the school’s board of trustees: 

Trustee’s Name Board Position 
James Sander Chair 

Christopher Brignola Vice Chair 
Lucas 

Wa
Doe surerTrea

SecrStephen sserman etary 
Fatoumata Camara mberMe

Norma Hurwitsz has served has the Founder/Executive Director since 2009. Leena 
Varghese has served as the school leader(Principal) since 2012. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

“With the leadership of the School Board, its administration, teachers and support staff, 
Academic Leadership Charter School’s mission is to develop in students the ability to exceed 
NYS performance standards in all major academic areas in a safe and nurturing environment. In 
partnership with parents and the community, our students will be empowered to become leaders 
and take an active role in their learning while exhibiting good character.” 

Academic Leadership Charter School has set very high academic performance goals for 
our students and has striven to meet those goals by providing a strong and differentiated 
instructional program. Our main goal and focus is to provide our students with a quality 
educational program that helps them to develop and demonstrate College and Career Readiness 
by meeting or exceeding NYS Common Core Standards through a strong curriculum. 

It is our belief that all students can achieve academic success in a nurturing and 
academically rigorous environment. Our students have outperformed schools in CSD 7, our peer 
schools, and students city-wide1. During our initial charter period, we also saw an improvement 
for individual students from year to year. Our instructional program focuses on Literacy across 
the content areas in all grades and this has proven to be successful for all of our students, 
including our struggling population. 

School Enrollment by Grade Level and School Year 
School 
Year K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total 

2014-15 

2015-16 

2016-17 

2017-18 55 50 51 55 47 58 49 49 83 0 0 0 0 549 

2018-19 88 76 55 57 55 49 53 40 39 0 0 0 0 521 

GOAL 1: ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS 

Goal 1: English Language Arts 
All students at Academic Leadership Charter School will become proficient in English Language 
Arts 

BACKGROUND 
Our Literacy program is designed to help students become fluent readers and 

critical thinkers. We follow an interdisciplinary approach that is content based and 
allows for language development and vocabulary expansion. Every day, students 

Academic Leadership Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

read and analyze stories and other rich texts, such as magazine articles and poetry. 
Fiction and non-fiction stories are analyzed by students based on weekly themes 
and story genres which enable mastery of that particular weekly topic; character 
study, mysteries, plays, multicultural stories, myths, fables, legends and novels.  

We offer four periods of Literacy instruction daily, employing a balanced 
literacy program offering a mini lesson followed by a workshop period when the 
classroom teacher and the associate teacher initially work with at-risk, Special 
education, or ELL students. Once these students have demonstrated mastery, they 
proceed to work independently. The classroom teacher then reviews work with the 
group of on or above level students. Each of the aforementioned groups participate 
in small group workshop sessions with the classroom teacher, associate, or one of 
the instructional support teachers for 15-20 minutes sessions daily during the activity 
portion of the lesson. 

The first two periods consist of our core reading program, SRA Imagine It! for 
grades K-6 which allows students to read a variety of texts and build necessary 
reading comprehension skills. For grades 7- 8, we use novels and Pearson’s 
Literature reading anthologies. The third period is devoted to supplemental fiction 
texts that are teacher selected and theme based. The fourth period focuses on 
writing and responding to literature.   

It is important that our students have a love for reading by providing 
meaningful topical material tailored to students’ social and cognitive developmental 
and interest level, engaging texts, and the opportunity for all students to be active 
participants in every lesson, regardless of their ability level. To assist with providing 
best differentiated lessons in ELA, each classroom has created an ELA chart that 
outlines each comprehension skill, strategy, and elements of figurative language. 
This system of tracking identifies each student’s strengths where students are 
provided more challenging activities, and weaknesses which requires re-teaching. 
The ELA chart is updated within each six-week period to support most updated 
differentiated groups.  

In addition to rich fiction texts, we use have a variety of non-fiction texts 
incorporated in our curriculum. From their early years, ALCS students receive a 
content rich curriculum with social studies and science being taught daily and one 
period a day devoted to each of those subjects. In addition, during our literacy block, 
content is reinforced. Teachers have students read and discuss newspaper articles 
to remain aware of current events. Students examine articles from various 
newspapers on the same topic, to analyze how each has a point of view and bias 
and each journalist chooses to write what he or she wants readers to walk away 
with. 

Academic Leadership Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Each lesson is highly interactive and teachers facilitate rich discussions, 
analysis, and application of what is learned. Instead of teachers simply monitoring 
and ensuring that each student is on task during independent activities, our teachers 
use this time to re-teach and provide greater scaffolding to students who need it 
most. 

Every Monday, we hold professional development sessions to help teachers 
become well versed with our ELA curriculum. School administrators also co-teach 
with teachers to provide additional support. We assess students every six-weeks 
using a Mock assessment, modeled after the state’s ELA exam, to track student 
mastery and progress. 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will 
perform at or above proficiency on the New York State English language arts examination 
for grades 3-8. 

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program English language arts 
(“ELA”) assessment to students in 3rd through  8th grade in April 2019.  Each student’s raw 
score has been converted to a grade-specific scaled score and a performance level.  

The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration. 
The table indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested.  It also provides a 
detailed breakdown of those students excluded from the exam.  Note that this table includes 
all students according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second 
year (defined as enrolled by BEDS day of the previous school year).  

2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

Not Tested2 

Grade 
Total 

Tested IEP ELL Absen 
t 

Refused Total 
Enrolled 

3 56 6 6 0 0 56 
4 53 5 0 0 0 53 
5 47 0 0 0 0 47 
6 50 8 0 0 0 50 
7 40 0 0 0 0 40 
8 38 6 0 0 0 38 
All 284 25 6 0 0 284 

2 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English 
Language Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 

Academic Leadership Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION
 For The 2018-2019 school year, we met our goal of 75% of or more of our students being 
proficient in ELA. 84% of our students were proficient. Our continued efforts in the 
classroom and the professional development provided to teachers has led to this success. 

Performance on 2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

All Students  Enrolled in at least their 
Second Year Grade 

s Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

3 84% 56 93% 40 
4 72% 53 73% 44 
5 74% 47 85% 34 
6 88% 50 86% 42 
7 95% 40 97% 38 
8 95% 38 95% 38 
All 84% 284 87% 238 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Our students ELA proficiency rate increased from 72% to 84%, a gain of 12%. 

ELA Performance by Grade Level and Year 
Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Achieving Proficiency 
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 Grad 

e 
Percen 

t 
Number 
Tested Percent 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 

Perce 
nt 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 
3 88% 51 84% 56 
4 69% 45 72% 53 
5 67% 55 74% 47 
6 57% 46 88% 50 
7 62% 45 95% 40 
8 80% 83 95% 38 

All 72% 325 84% 284 

Goal 1: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the school’s aggregate Performance Index (“PI”) on the State English language 
arts exam will meet that year’s state Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the 
state’s ESSA accountability system. 

Academic Leadership Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

METHOD 
In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute 
proportion of a school's students who have taken the English language arts test have 
scored at the partially proficient, or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 
3 & 4). The percentage of students at each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI 
and determine if the school has met the MIP set each year by the state’s ESSA 
accountability system.  To achieve this measure, all tested students must have a PI value 
that equals or exceeds the state’s 2018-19 English language arts MIP for all students of 
105. The PI is the sum of the percent of students in all tested grades combined scoring at 
Level 2, plus two times the percent of students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half times 
the percent of students scoring at Level 4.  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Brief narrative highlighting results in the data tables that directly addresses the measure by 
comparing the PI to this year’s MIP. Narrative explicitly stating whether the school met the 
measure and discussing by how much the school fell short of or exceeded the measure, as 
well as notable performance in specific grades and populations.  Also, use this section to 
explain the results in the context of the school program, attributing the results to effective 
practices or problem areas. 

English Language Arts 2018-19 Performance Index 
Percent of Students at Each Performance Level Number in 

Cohort Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 
[?] [?] [?] [?] 

PI = [?] + [?] + = [?] 
[?] + 

[?] 
[?] 

(.5)*[? 
= [?] 

+ = [?] 
] 

PI = [?] 

Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year 
and performing at proficiency on the state English language arts exam will be greater than 
that of all students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 
A school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested 
students in the public school district of comparison.  Comparisons are between the results 

Academic Leadership Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their second year at the 
school and the total result for all students at the corresponding grades in the school district.3 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Academic Leadership Charter School significantly outperformed the local district in ELA. 

2018-19 State English Language Arts Exam 
Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

Percent of Students at or Above Proficiency 
Charter School 

Students In At Least 
2nd Year 

All District Students Grade 

Percent Number 
Tested Percent Number 

Tested 
3 93% 40 43% 1181 
4 73% 44 36% 1234 
5 85% 34 22% 1179 
6 86% 42 28% 1131 
7 97% 38 22% 1058 
8 95% 38 31% 1183 
All 87% 238 31% 6966 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Narrative provides a discussion of the charter school’s performance in comparison to the 
local district in previous years.  In addition, the school can use a supplemental table for this 
section on a comparison of the charter school to selected local schools.  The table shell 
appears on page 31 in the Appendix. 

Also, additional evidence may include demographic differences between the school and the 
district as well as compelling reasons for comparing the school to a subset of schools within 
the district. 

English Language Arts Performance of Charter School and Local District 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Scoring 
at or Above Proficiency Compared to District Students 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 
Charter 
School District Charter 

School District Charter 
School District 

3 89% 39% 93% 43% 
4 79% 30% 73% 36% 
5 65% 23% 85% 22% 
6 54% 17% 86% 28% 

3 Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing 
grade level ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide.  The NYSED announces the release of 
the data on its News Release webpage. 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

7 63% 15% 97% 22% 
8 80% 14% 95% 31% 
All 84% 23% 87% 31% 

Goal 1: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state English 
language arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to 
a meaningful degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically 
disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 
The SUNY Charter Schools Institute (“Institute”) conducts a comparative performance 
analysis, which compares the school’s performance to that of demographically similar public 
schools statewide.  The Institute uses a regression analysis to control for the percentage of 
economically disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. The 
Institute compares the school’s actual performance to the predicted performance of public 
schools with a similar concentration of economically disadvantaged students.  The 
difference between the school’s actual and predicted performance, relative to other schools 
with similar economically disadvantaged statistics, produces an Effect Size.  An Effect Size 
of 0.3, or performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree, is the requirement for 
achieving this measure. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the 
demands of the data analysis, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 
2017-18 results, the most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Our school population is over 93% free and reduced lunch. Therefore, data for this 
subgroup is not disaggregated as the majority of the population qualifies for free and 
reduced price lunch. 

2017-18 English Lan Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent 
Economically 
Disadvantage 

d 

guage Arts 

Number 
Tested 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Difference 
between 

Actual and 
Predicted 

Effect 
Size 

Actual Predicted 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
All 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

Write in Comparative Performance Analysis from report here 
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2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Narrative provides a discussion of current and past performance of this comparative 
measure, including trends over time. 

English Language Arts Comparative Performance by School Year 

School 
Year Grades 

Percent 
Economically 

Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested Actual Predicted Effect 

Size 

2015-16 
2016-17 
2017-18 

Goal 1: Growth Measure4 

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile 
in English language arts for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. 

METHOD 
This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one 
year to the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the 
same score in the previous year.  The analysis only includes students who took the state 
exam in 2017-18 and also have a state exam score from 2016-17 including students who 
were retained in the same grade.  Students with the same 2016-17 score are ranked by 
their 2017-18 score and assigned a percentile based on their relative growth in performance 
(student growth percentile).  Students’ growth percentiles are aggregated school-wide to 
yield a school’s mean growth percentile.  In order for a school to perform above the target 
for this measure, it must have a mean growth percentile greater than 50. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the most recent Growth Model data 
available.5 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
2017-18 English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 

Grade 
Mean Growth 

Percentile 
School Target 

4 50.0 
5 50.0 
6 50.0 
7 50.0 
8 50.0 
All 50.0 

4 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 

5 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s Business Portal: portal.nysed.gov. 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

English Language Arts Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 
Mean Growth Percentile Grad 

e 2015-16 2016-17 2017-
18 Target 

4 50.0 
5 50.0 
6 50.0 
7 50.0 
8 50.0 

All 50.0 

Goal 1: Optional Measure 

[Include additional measures that are part of the Accountability Plan.] 

METHOD: 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION: 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE: 

SUMMARY OF THE ENGLISH LANGUAGE ARTS GOAL 
Our school met all of its goals for the 2018-2019 school year. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at 
least their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York 
State English language arts exam for grades 3-8. 

Goal Met 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s English language 
arts exam will meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s 
ESSA accountability system. 

Goal Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at 
least their second year and performing at proficiency on the state 
English language arts exam will be greater than that of students in 
the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

Goal Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance 
on the state English language arts exam by an effect size of 0.3 or 
above (performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) 
according to a regression analysis controlling for economically 

Goal Met 

Academic Leadership Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  
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disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. 
(Using 2017-18 results.) 

Growth 

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean 
unadjusted growth percentile in English language arts for all tested 
students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. (Using 2017-18 
results.) 

Goal Met 

ACTION PLAN 
In order to continue to make gains, we will continue to focus on our instructional and 
professional development programs. 

GOAL 2: MATHEMATICS 

Goal 2: Mathematics 
All students at Academic Leadership Charter School will become proficient in Mathematics. 

BACKGROUND 
Our mathematics program is designed to help students master basic numerical skills 
while allowing them to think more critically, solve word problems, and gain necessary 
skills for their future. We have a spiraled approach to Mathematics, with each lesson 
beginning with a ten-minute warm-up activity to review arithmetic operations and 
fundamentals for each algorithm. Each period contains two mini lessons which focus 
on different math strands. During each lesson, based on how well students have 
mastered the day’s concepts, they either receive further review or participate in an 
independent activity offering greater challenge. Mathematics is taught for two 45-
minute periods daily, allowing ample time for students to master their grade’s 
curriculum while being exposed to concepts of the next grade. Math charts which 
display each mathematics strand and common core standard will be aligned to each 
student identifying mastery and needs of improvement which will guide teachers to 
best differentiate instruction. 

For grades K-5, ALCS employs the TERC Investigations in Number, Data and 
Space. For grades 6-8, we use Connected Mathematics Project. For all grades, in 
addition to our core Mathematics programs, We also purchase supplemental 
workbooks from Coach, Test Ready, Progress NY, and Finish Line to enhance our 
Mathematics curriculum. Having as many resources as possible will allow teachers 
to teach topics in a variety of ways. 

Teachers create math binders which combine all resources, organized by 
topic. . This makes lesson planning more manageable and allows for more strategic 

Academic Leadership Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  
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planning as activities at various levels are easily available to differentiate instruction. 
Each classroom has a math center with worksheets organized by topic, 
manipulatives, and computers for student use. This allows students to reinforce 
topics where students need additional support after each lesson. If a student finishes 
an activity early, they go to the math center to work at applying understanding or 
tackling an area where further practice is warranted. Teachers maintain math charts 
that track progress by strands/skills and show where students need additional 
support. Students are made aware of their progress as they have their individual 
math charts in their notebooks and teachers hold conversations with them. This 
enables students to become active participants in their learning. They know what 
topics they need to work on and can go to the math center and practice those topics 
further. 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will 
perform at proficiency on the New York State mathematics examination for grades 3-8. 

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program mathematics assessment to 
students in 3rd through 8th  grade in April 2019.  Each student’s raw score has been 
converted to a grade-specific scaled score and a performance level.  

The table below summarizes participation information for this year’s test administration. 
The table indicates total enrollment and total number of students tested.  It also provides a 
detailed breakdown of those students excluded from the exam.  Note that this table includes 
all students according to grade level, even if they have not enrolled in at least their second 
year. 

2018-19 State Mathematics Exam 
Number of Students Tested and Not Tested 

Not Tested6 

Grade Total 
Tested IEP ELL Absen 

t 
Refused Total 

Enrolled 

3 55 6 6 0 0 55 
4 53 5 0 0 0 53 
5 46 0 0 0 1 47 
6 50 8 0 0 0 50 
7 40 0 0 0 0 40 

6 Students exempted from this exam according to their Individualized Education Program (IEP), because of English 
Language Learners (ELL) status, or absence for at least some part of the exam. 

Academic Leadership Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  
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8 37 6 0 0 0 37 
All 281 25 6 0 1 282 

RESULTS AND EVALUATIO 

For The 2018-2019 school year, we met our goal of 755% of or more of our students being 
proficient in Mathematics. 78% of our students were proficient and 80% of students in their 
second year were proficient. Our continued efforts in the classroom and the professional 
development provided to teachers has led to this success. 

Performance on 2018-19 State Mathematics Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Grade 
All Students  Enrolled in at least their 

Second Year 

s Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

3 80% 55 85% 39 
4 75% 53 82% 44 
5 72% 46 82% 33 
6 76% 50 70% 43 
7 78% 40 89% 38 
8 86% 37 86% 37 
All 78% 281 80% 234 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE5 

Performance on a Regents Mathematics Exam 
Of 8th Grade All Students by Year 

Grade Year Regents 
Exam 

Percent 
Passing 
with a 65 

Number 
Tested 

8 2016-17 
8 2017-18 
8 2018-19 

Academic Leadership Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  
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Mathematics Performance by Grade Level and School Year 

Grad 
e 

Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 
Achieving Proficiency 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Percen 
t 

Number 
Tested Percent 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 

Perce 
nt 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 
3 89% 45 85% 39 
4 79% 33 82% 44 
5 65% 49 82% 33 
6 54% 41 70% 43 
7 63% 38 89% 38 
8 80% 83 86% 37 

All 84% 242 80% 234 

Goal 2: Absolute Measure 

Each year, the school’s aggregate Performance Index (“PI”) on the state mathematics exam 
will meet that year’s state Measure of Interim Progress (“MIP”) set forth in the state’s ESSA 
accountability system. 

METHOD 
In New York State, ESSA school performance goals are met by showing that an absolute 
proportion of a school's students who have taken the mathematics test have scored at the 
partially proficient, or proficient and advanced performance levels (Levels 2 or 3 & 4). The 
percentage of students at each of these three levels is used to calculate a PI and determine 
if the school has met the MIP set each year by the state’s ESSA accountability system. To 
achieve this measure, all tested students must have a PI value that equals or exceeds the 
state’s 2018-19 mathematics MIP for all students of 107.  The PI is the sum of the percent 
of students in all tested grades combined scoring at Level 2, plus two times the percent of 
students scoring at Level 3, plus two-and-a-half times the percent of students scoring at 
Level 4.  Thus, the highest possible PI is 250. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Mathematics 2017-18 Performance Level Index (PI) 

Number in Percent of Students at Each Performance Level 
Cohort Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4 

[?] [?] [?] [?] 

PI = [?] + [? + [?] = [?] 
] 
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[? + [?] 
(.5)*[? 

] 

= [?] 
] + = [?] 

PI = [?] 

Goal 2:  Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second year 
and performing at proficiency on the state mathematics exam will be greater than that of all 
students in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 
A school compares the performance of tested students enrolled in at least their second year 
to that of all tested students in the public school district of comparison.  Comparisons are 
between the results for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their 
second year at the school and the total result for all students at the corresponding grades in 
the school district.7 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Academic Leadership Charter School students significantly outperformed students in the 
local district. 

Grade 

Percent of Students at or Above Proficiency 
Charter School 

Students In At Least 
2nd Year 

All District Students 

Percent Number 
Tested Percent Number 

Tested 
3 85% 39 35% 1224 
4 82% 44 29% 1266 
5 82% 33 27% 1212 
6 70% 43 26% 1136 
7 89% 38 21% 1097 

7 Schools can acquire these data when the New York State Education Department releases its database containing 
grade level ELA and math test results for all schools and districts statewide.  The NYSED announces the release of 
the data on its News Release webpage. 
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8 86% 37 17% 1148 
All 80% 234 26% 7083 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
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Mathematics Performance of Charter School and Local District 
by Grade Level and School Year 

Percent of Students Enrolled in at Least their Second Year Who Are 
at Proficiency Compared to Local District Students 

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 Grade 
Charter 
School District Charter 

School District Charter 
School District 

3 88% 51 85% 35% 
4 69% 45 82% 29% 
5 67% 55 82% 27% 
6 57% 46 70% 26% 
7 62% 45 89% 21% 
8 80% 83 86% 17% 
All 72% 325 80% 26% 

Goal 2:  Comparative Measure 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance on the state 
mathematics exam by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above (performing higher than expected to 
a meaningful degree) according to a regression analysis controlling for economically 
disadvantaged students among all public schools in New York State. 

METHOD 
The Institute conducts a Comparative Performance Analysis, which compares the school’s 
performance to that of demographically similar public schools statewide. The Institute uses 
a regression analysis to control for the percentage of economically disadvantaged students 
among all public schools in New York State.  The Institute compares the school’s actual 
performance to the predicted performance of public schools with a similar concentration of 
economically disadvantaged students.  The difference between the school’s actual and 
predicted performance, relative to other schools with similar economically disadvantaged 
statistics, produces an Effect Size.  An Effect Size of 0.3, or performing higher than 
expected to a meaningful degree, is the requirement for achieving this measure. 

Given the timing of the state’s release of economically disadvantaged data and the 
demands of the data analysis, the 2017-18 analysis is not yet available. This report contains 
2017-18 results, the most recent Comparative Performance Analysis available. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Our school population is over 93% free and reduced lunch. Therefore, data for this 
subgroup is not disaggregated as the majority of the population qualifies for free and 
reduced price lunch. 

Academic Leadership Charter School 2018-19 Accountability Plan Progress Report  
Page 18 of 26 



                                     
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

     

   
   

  

  
 

  
     

  

  

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

2017-18 Mathematics Comparative Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent 
Economically Number 
Disadvantage Tested 

d 

Percent of Students 
at Levels 3&4 

Actual Predicted 

Difference 
between Effect 

Actual and Size 
Predicted 

3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
All 

School’s Overall Comparative Performance: 

[Write in Comparative Performance Analysis from report here] 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Mathematics Comparative Performance by School Year 

School 
Year Grades 

Percent 
Economically 

Disadvantaged 

Number 
Tested Actual Predicted Effect 

Size 

2015-16 
2016-17 
2017-18 

Goal 2: Growth Measure8 

Each year, under the state’s Growth Model, the school’s mean unadjusted growth percentile 
in mathematics for all tested students in grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. 

METHOD 
This measure examines the change in performance of the same group of students from one 
year to the next and the progress they are making in comparison to other students with the 
same score in the previous year.  The analysis only includes students who took the state 
exam in 2017-18 and also have a state exam score in 2016-17 including students who were 
retained in the same grade.  Students with the same 2016-17 scores are ranked by their 
2017-18 scores and assigned a percentile based on their relative growth in performance 
(student growth percentile).  Students’ growth percentiles are aggregated school-wide to 
yield a school’s mean growth percentile.  In order for a school to meet the measure, the 
school would have to achieve a mean growth percentile above the target of 50. 

8 See Guidelines for Creating a SUNY Accountability Plan for an explanation. 
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Given the timing of the state’s release of Growth Model data, the 2018-19 analysis is not yet 
available. This report contains 2017-18 results, the most recent Growth Model data 
available.9 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
2017-18 Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level 

Mean Growth 
Grade Percentile 

School Target 
4 50.0 
5 50.0 
6 50.0 
7 50.0 
8 50.0 

All 50.0 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 

Mathematics Mean Growth Percentile by Grade Level and School Year 
Mean Growth Percentile Grad 

e 2015-16 2016-17 2017-
18 Target 

4 50.0 
5 50.0 
6 50.0 
7 50.0 
8 50.0 

All 50.0 

Goal 2: Optional Measure 

[Include additional measures that are part of the Accountability Plan.] 

METHOD: 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION: 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE: 

9 Schools can acquire these data from the NYSED’s business portal: portal.nysed.gov. 
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SUMMARY OF THE MATHEMATICS GOAL 
For the 2018-2019 school year, our school met all of its goals. 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at 
least their second year will perform at proficiency on the New York 
State mathematics exam for grades 3-8. 

Goal met 

Absolute 
Each year, the school’s aggregate PI on the state’s English language 
arts exam will meet that year’s state MIP as set forth in the state’s 
ESSA accountability system. 

Goal Met 

Comparative 
Each year, the percent of all tested students who are enrolled in at 
least their second year and performing at proficiency on the state 
mathematics exam will be greater than that of students in the same 
tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

Goal Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the school will exceed its predicted level of performance 
on the state mathematics exam by an Effect Size of 0.3 or above 
(performing higher than expected to a meaningful degree) according 
to a regression analysis controlling for economically disadvantaged 
students among all public schools in New York State. (Using 2017-18 
results.) 

Goal met 

Growth 
Each year, under the state’s Growth Model the school’s mean 
unadjusted growth percentile in mathematics for all tested students in 
grades 4-8 will be above the target of 50. (Using the 2017-18 results.) 

Goal met 

ACTION PLAN 
Our goal for this school year is to ensure that we continue to train our teachers on grade 
level Mathematics content while differentiating instruction for all students to reach mastery. 

GOAL 3: SCIENCE 

Goal 3: Science 
All students at Academic Leadership Charter School will demonstrate competency in the 
understanding and application of scientific reasoning. 

BACKGROUND 
Our instructional program, which offers Science daily from Kindergarten through 8th grade, 
has allowed our children to develop strong skills and collect a body of knowledge. We focus 
on a variety of units each school year and students are accessed every six-weeks. We 
combined literacy and hands-on experiments within our science program. 

Goal 3: Absolute Measure 
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Page 21 of 26 



                                     
 

 
 

    
   

 
 

 
   

  
 

 

 

  

2018-19 ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 

Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year will 
perform at or above proficiency on the New York State science examination. 

METHOD 
The school administered the New York State Testing Program science assessment to 
students in 4th and 8th grade in spring 2019.  The school converted each student’s raw score 
to a performance level and a grade-specific scaled score.  The criterion for success on this 
measure requires students enrolled in at least their second year to score at proficiency.  

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Our school significantly exceeded our goal with 99% of students passing the state Science 
exam. 

Charter School Performance on 2018-19 State Science Exam 
By All Students and Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

Percent of Students at Proficiency of Students in 
Grade At Least 2nd Year 

Percent Proficient Number Tested 
4 98% 53 
8 100% 36 

All 99% 89 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Performance on a Regents Science Exam 

Of 8th Grade All Students by Year 

Grade Year Regents 
Exam 

Percent 
Passing 
with a 65 

Number 
Tested 

8 2016-17 
8 2017-18 
8 2018-19 

Science Performance by Grade Level and School Year 
Percent of Students Enrolled in At Least Their Second Year 

at Proficiency 
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 Grad 

e Percent 
Proficien 

t 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 

Perce 
nt 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 

Percent 
Proficien 

t 

Numbe 
r 

Tested 
4 100% 44 98% 44 
8 89% 83 100% 36 
All 93% 127 99% 89 
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Goal 3: Comparative Measure 

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in at least their second year and 
performing at proficiency on the state science exam will be greater than that of all students 
in the same tested grades in the school district of comparison. 

METHOD 
The school compares tested students enrolled in at least their second year to all tested 
students in the public school district of comparison.  Comparisons are between the results 
for each grade in which the school had tested students in at least their second year and the 
results for the respective grades in the school district of comparison.  Given the timing of the 
state’s release of district science data, the 2018-19 comparative data may not yet be 
available.  If not, schools should report comparison to the district’s 2017-18 data. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
2018-19 State Science Exam 

Charter School and District Performance by Grade Level 

Grade 

Percent of Students at Proficiency 
Charter School 

Students In At Least 
2nd Year 

All District Students10 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

Percent 
Proficient 

Number 
Tested 

4 98% 44 
8 100% 36 
All 99% 89 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Science Performance of Charter School and Local District 

by Grade Level and School Year 

Grade 

Percent of Charter School Students at Proficiency and Enrolled in At 
Least their Second Year Compared to Local District Students 
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 

Charter 
School District Charter 

School District Charter 
School District 

4 
8 
All 

Goal 3: Optional Measure 

[Include additional measures that are part of the Accountability Plan.] 

AcademiMETHOD: 
Page 23 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION: 

ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE: 

10 
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SUMMARY OF THE SCIENCE GOAL 

Type Measure Outcome 

Absolute 
Each year, 75 percent of all tested students enrolled in 
at least their second year will perform at or above 
proficiency on the New York State examination. 

Goal Met 

Comparative 

Each year, the percent of all tested students enrolled in 
at least their second year and performing at proficiency 
on the state exam will be greater than that of all students 
in the same tested grades in the school district of 
comparison. 

Goal Met 

[Write in optional measure here] 

ACTION PLAN 

GOAL 4: ESSA 

Goal 4: ESSA 

Under the state’s ESSA accountability system, the school is in good standing:  the state has 
not identified the school for comprehensive or targeted improvement.  

Goal 4: Absolute Measure 

Under the state’s ESSA accountability system, the school is in good standing:  the state has 
not identified the school for comprehensive or targeted improvement.  

METHOD 
Because all students are expected to meet the state's performance standards, the federal 
statute stipulates that various sub-populations and demographic categories of students 
among all tested students must meet the state standard in and of themselves aside from the 
overall school results.  As New York State, like all states, is required to establish a specific 
system for making these determinations for its public schools, charter schools do not have 
latitude in establishing their own performance levels or criteria of success for meeting the 
ESSA accountability requirements.  Each year, the state issues School Report Cards that 
indicate a school’s status under the state accountability system. 

RESULTS AND EVALUATION 
Academic Leadership Charter School has been deemed in good standing. 
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ADDITIONAL EVIDENCE 
Academic Leadership Charter School has consistently been deemed in good standing. 

Accountability Status by Year 
Year Status 

2016-17 Good Standing 
2017-18 Good Standing 
2018-19 Good Standing 
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APPENDIX A: OPTIONAL GOALS 
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Entry 4 Expenditures per Child 
Created: 07/11/2019 • Last updated: 07/19/2019 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Financial Information 

This information is required of ALL charter schools. Provide the following measures of fiscal 
performance of the charter school in Appendix B (Total Expenditures and Administrative Expenditures 

Per Child): 

1. Total Expenditures Per Child 

To calculate ‘Total Expenditures per Child’ take total expenditures (from the unaudited 2018-
19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) and divide by the year end FTE student enrollment. 
(Integers Only. No dollar signs or commas). 

Note: The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the 

Audit Guide can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil 
calculations: http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html 

Line 1: Total Expenditures 4296952 

Line 2: Year End FTE student enrollment 497 

Line 3: Divide Line 1 by Line 2 8635 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 		

		
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	

2. Administrative Expenditures per Child 

To calculate ‘Administrative Expenditures per Child' To calculate “Administrative Expenditures per 
Child” first add together the following: 

1. Take the relevant portion from the ‘personnel services cost’ row and the ‘management and general’ 
column (from the unaudited 2018 19 Schedule of Functional Expenses) 

2. Any contracted administrative/management fee paid to other organizations or corporations 

3. Take the total from above and divide it by the year end FTE enrollment. The relevant portion that must 
be included in this calculation is defined as follows: 

Administrative Expenditures: Administration and management of the charter school includes the 

activities and personnel of the offices of the chief school officer, the finance or business offices, school 
operations personnel, data management and reporting, human resources, technology, etc. It also 

includes those administrative and management services provided by other organizations or corporations 

on behalf of the charter school for which the charter school pays a fee or other compensation. Do not 
include the FTE of personnel whose role is to directly support the instructional program. 

Notes: 
The information on the Schedule of Functional Expenses on pages 41–43 of the Audit Guide 

can help schools locate the amounts to use in the two per pupil calculations: 
http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/AuditGuide.html. 
Employee benefit costs or expenditures should not be reported in the above calculations. 

Line 1: Relevant Personnel Services 
Cost (Row) 

Line 2: Management and General Cost
(Column) 

Line 3: Sum of Line 1 and Line 2 

Line 5: Divide Line 3 by the Year End
FTE student enrollment 

Thank you. 

231723 

168872 

400595 

805 

2 / 2 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Board of Trustees of 

Academic Leadership Charter School 

New York, New York 

Report on the financial statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Academic Leadership Charter 

School, which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and 

the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, 

and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 

America, this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the financial position of Academic Leadership Charter School as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, 

and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other reporting required by government auditing standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 

October 29, 2019 on our consideration of Academic Leadership Charter School internal control 

over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 

regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 

describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 

and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 

financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Academic Leadership Charter 

School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

New York, New York 

October 29, 2019 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statements of Financial Position 

As of June 30, 

2019 2018

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 23,964,961$    19,559,344$    
Grants receivable 439,926           302,401           

Total current assets 24,404,887      19,861,745      

Property and equipment, net - Note 5 4,094,686        3,845,287        

Other assets
Restricted cash 77,183             76,124             

Total Assets 28,576,756$    23,783,156$    

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 395,120$         268,738$         
Accrued salaries and other payroll-related 
  expenses - Note 6 323,663           440,220           

Refundable advances 1,975               36,695             

Total current liabilities 720,758           745,653           

Net assets without donor restrictions
Undesignated 27,778,815      22,961,379      
Reserve - contingency 77,183             76,124             

Total net assets without donor restrictions 27,855,998      23,037,503      

Total liabilities and net assets without donor restrictions 28,576,756$    23,783,156$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statements of Activities 

For the years ended June 30, 

Operating revenue and other support 2019 2018

State and local per pupil operating revenue
General education 7,616,230$       7,545,393$      
Special education 301,950            372,407           

Total state and local per pupil operating revenue 7,918,180         7,917,800        

Grants, contracts and other support
Federal grants 589,386            460,714           
State and local grants 277,275            217,972           
Interest and other income 385,940            181,411           

Total operating revenue and other support 9,170,781         8,777,897        

Expenses
Program expenses
Regular education 3,787,518         3,737,656        
Special education 133,364            160,419           

Total program expenses 3,920,882         3,898,075        

Supporting services
Management and general 431,404            433,151           

Total program and supporting services expenses 4,352,286         4,331,226        

Change in net assets 4,818,495         4,446,671        
Net assets without restrictions - beginning of year 23,037,503       18,590,832      

Net assets without restrictions - end of year 27,855,998$     23,037,503$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

  Supporting 

services  

    Regular 

education    

    Special

education    

    Total 

programs    

 Management 

and general    

Salaries

Instructional personnel 2,387,518$  83,226$    2,470,744$  87,267$       2,558,011$      
Administrative staff personnel -                   -                -                   145,196       145,196           

Total salaries 2,387,518    83,226      2,470,744    232,463       2,703,207        

Operating expenses

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 631,880       22,184      654,064       61,542         715,606           

Professional and consulting -                   -                -                   83,722         83,722             

Staff development 6,499           258           6,757           -                   6,757               

Textbooks and curriculum 201,536       7,983        209,519       -                   209,519           

Communication and technology 43,026         1,510        44,536         4,191           48,727             

Equipment rental and lease 61,183         2,147        63,330         5,959           69,289             

Student and staff recruiting 267,375       9,387        276,762       26,041         302,803           

Transportation 10,629         421           11,050         -                   11,050             

Supplies and materials 33,002         1,159        34,161         3,214           37,375             

Repairs and maintenance 8,263           289           8,552           805              9,357               

Administrative 39,311         1,384        40,695         3,991           44,686             

Insurance 40,269         1,414        41,683         3,922           45,605             

Depreciation 57,027         2,002        59,029         5,554           64,583             

Total operating expenses 1,400,000    50,138      1,450,138    198,941       1,649,079        

Total expenses 3,787,518$  133,364$  3,920,882$  431,404$     4,352,286$      

 Program expenses  Total Program 

and Supporting 

services  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statement of Functional Expenses 

For the year ended June 30, 2018 

 Supporting 

services 

   Regular 

education   

   Special

education   

   Total 

programs   

   Management 

and general   

Salaries
Instructional personnel 2,622,341$     64,276$       2,686,617$     89,052$         2,775,669$      
Administrative staff personnel -                      -                  -                      143,095         143,095           
Total salaries 2,622,341       64,276         2,686,617       232,147         2,918,764        

Operating expenses
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 584,982          55,200         640,182          76,707           716,889           
Professional and consulting -                      -                  -                      77,440           77,440             
Staff development  12,099            703              12,802            -                     12,802             
Textbooks and curriculum  210,198          12,210         222,408          -                     222,408           
Communication and technology  33,789            3,188           36,977            4,431             41,408             
Equipment rental and lease  58,680            5,537           64,217            7,695             71,912             
Student and staff recruiting  40,602            3,831           44,433            5,324             49,757             
Supplies and materials  26,419            2,493           28,912            3,464             32,376             
Repairs and maintenance  5,219              493              5,712              684                6,396               
Administrative  42,167            2,942           45,109            11,994           57,103             
Insurance  32,798            3,095           35,893            4,301             40,194             
Depreciation   68,362            6,451           74,813            8,964             83,777             

Total operating expenses 1,115,315       96,143         1,211,458       201,004         1,412,462        

Total expenses 3,737,656$     160,419$         3,898,075$     433,151$       4,331,226$      

Program expenses
 Total Program 

and Supporting 

services  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statements of Cash Flows 

For the years ended June 30, 

2019 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets 4,818,495$      4,446,671$      

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets 
to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation 64,583             83,777             

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Grants receivable (137,525)         189,165           
Prepaid expenses -                      33,376             
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 126,382           45,674             
Accrued payroll and benefits (116,557)         80,512             
Security deposits -                      18,727             
Refundable advances (34,720)           36,695             

Net cash provided by operating activities 4,720,658        4,934,597        

Cash flows used in investing activities
Restricted cash (1,059)             (636)                
Acquisition of fixed assets (313,982)         (267,219)         

Net cash used in investing activities (315,041)         (267,855)         

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,405,617        4,666,742        

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 19,559,344      14,892,602      

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 23,964,961$    19,559,344$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Note 1 Organization 

Academic Leadership Charter School (the “School”), a 501(c)(3) tax-exempt organization, is a 

public charter school located in Bronx, New York. The School was granted a provisional charter 

on February 10, 2009, which was renewed on May 1, 2018 for an additional five years. The 

School served from Kindergarten through seventh grade in 2015 and added eighth grade in 

2016. The School provides a broad-based education for all students, focusing on developing 

good character as well as comprehension and analytical skills across all disciplines, ranging 

from the fundamentals of reading and mathematics to fine arts, physical education, drama, and 

dance. 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

Basis of presentation and use of estimates. The financial statements have been prepared in 

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

(“U.S. GAAP”), which requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 

the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 

the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Basis of presentation. The financial statements of the School have been prepared in 

accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP"), which require 

the School to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the 

following net asset classifications: 

Net assets without donor restrictions. Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 

restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives 

of the organization. 

Net assets with donor restrictions. Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors, 

and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be 

met by actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are 

perpetual in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in 

perpetuity. 

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor 

restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with 

donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statements of activities. 

Cash and cash equivalents. The School considers all short-term, highly liquid investments, 

such as money market funds, to be cash equivalents. 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies – (continued) 

Revenue recognition. The School recognizes revenue from the state and local governments 

based on the School’s charter status and the number of students enrolled. Such revenue is 

recorded when services are performed, in accordance with the charter agreement. The New 

York State Department of Education mandates the rate per pupil. Such revenue is recognized 

ratably over the related school year in which it is earned. 

Grants and contracts revenue is recognized when qualifying expenditures are incurred and/or 

services are provided to the students during the applicable school year. Funds received in 

advance or any unspent funds for which qualifying expenditures have not been incurred are 

recorded as refundable advances. Any unspent amounts might be returned to the granting 

agency or the granting agency can approve that those amounts be applied to a future grant 

period. 

Grants receivable. Grants receivable are recorded at net realizable value and do not bear 

interest. The allowance for doubtful accounts is the School’s best estimate of the amount of 

probable credit losses in existing receivables. Management determines the allowance based on 

historical write-off experience and reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts periodically. 

Past due balances are reviewed individually for collectability. Grants receivable are $439,926 

and $302,401 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. There is no allowance recorded at June 

30, 2019, as all amounts are deemed collectible. 

Property and equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Donated assets are 

capitalized at the estimated fair value at date of receipt. Maintenance and repairs are charged to 

expense as incurred; significant improvements are capitalized. The School capitalizes additions 

and significant improvements in excess of $500. Items with an acquisition cost of less than $500 

or a useful life of less than one year are expensed in the year purchased. Depreciation is 

computed using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of the respective asset. The 

estimated depreciable lives of the different classes of property are as follows: 

Asset Userful life

Furniture and fixtures 7 years

Computer, software and office equipment 3 years

Reclassifications. Certain accounts relating to the prior year have been reclassified to conform 

to the current year’s presentation. The reclassification had no effect on 2018 total assets, 

liabilities and net assets. 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies – (continued) 

Restricted cash. Under the provisions of its charter, the School established an escrow amount 

to pay for legal and audit expenses that would be associated with dissolution, should such event 

occur. 

Refundable advances. Funds received in advance for which qualifying expenditures have not 

been incurred are reflected as refundable advances from state and local government grants in the 

accompanying statement of financial position. 

Donated goods and services. The School is located in two New York City Department of 

Education facility’s and utilizes a combined total of approximately 156,846 square feet for both 

facilities at no charge. In addition, the School received donated transportation and food service 

services from the local district. The School was unable to determine a value for these services. 

The School shares space with a New York City public school. The School is not responsible for 

services other than the security needed after public school hours. 

Income taxes. The School is tax-exempt under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 

(IRC) and has been classified as a publicly supported organization as described in IRC sections 

509(A)(1) and 170(B)(1)(A)(II). 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management 

to evaluate tax positions taken and recognize a tax liability (or asset) if the School has taken an 

uncertain position that more likely than not would not be sustained upon examination by taxing 

authorities. Management has analyzed the tax positions taken and has concluded that, as of June 

30, 2019, there are no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would require 

recognition or disclosure in the accompanying financial statements. 

The School is no longer subject to income tax examination by federal, state or local tax 

authorities for years before June 30, 2016. 

Functional expenses. The costs of providing program and other activities have been 

summarized on a functional basis in the statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have 

been allocated among program services, administrative and fund raising. Such allocations are 

determined by management on an equitable basis. 

The expenses that are allocated include the following: 

Salaries Time and effort 

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits Time and effort 

Professional and consulting Time and effort 

Insurance Square footage 

Repairs and maintenance Time and effort 

10 



  

   

  

 

 

 

      

 

     

   

    

  

   

   

 

 

 

   

 

    

     

  

 

   

   

    

 

 

 

   

 

      

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies – (continued) 

Change in accounting principle. On August 18, 2016, FABS issued Accounting Standards 

Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entitles (Topic 958) – Presentation of Financial 

Statements of Not-for Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity and 

understandability of net asset classification, efficiencies in information about liquidity and 

availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about 

expenses and investment return. We have implemented ASU 2016-14 and have adjusted the 

presentation in these financial statements accordingly. 

Note 3 Retirement plan 

The School offers a 401(k) plan for all full-time employees after 90 days. Participation in the 

plan is voluntary. Employees can make pretax contributions. Up to a maximum of 100% of their 

annual compensation, up to IRS limits for each calendar year. The School matches 100% of an 

employee’s contribution up to 5% of the employee’s annual compensation. For the years ended 

June 30, 2019, and 2018, the School’s matching contribution were $74,223 and $77,000 

respectively. Such plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the 

accompanying financial statements. All plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the 

Plan’s participants and beneficiaries 

Note 4 Liquidity and availability 

Financial assets available for general expenditures, that is, without donor or other restrictions 

limiting their use, within one year of June 30, are: 

Financial assets: 2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,964,961  $ 19,559,344 

Grants receivable 439,926       302,401      

Amount available for general expenditures within 

one year $ 24,404,887  $ 19,861,745 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Note 5 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following as of June 30: 

2019 2018

Land 3,259,800$ 3,259,800$     

Construction-in-progress 768,647 464,696

Furniture and fixtures 205,048 205,048

Equipment 680,375 670,343          

Software 10,288 10,288

4,924,158   4,610,175       

Less, accumulated depreciation (829,472)     (764,888)         

4,094,686$ 3,845,287$     

Land relates to a parcel of land on 356-362 East 139th Street in the Bronx, New York, which will 

be used to construct the School’s future educational facility. 

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $ 64,583 and $ 83,777, 

respectively. 

Construction-in-progress at June 30, 2019 and 2018 consist of costs incurred for architecture, 

engineering, and professional fees related to the construction of the School’s future education 

facility that is not yet in service. Construction-in-progress is stated at cost. No provision for 

depreciation is made on construction-in-progress until such time as the relevant assets are 

completed and put into use. 

Note 6 Accrued salaries and other payroll-related expenses 

Accrued salaries and other payroll-related expenses consist of amounts earned by the staff 

during the school year which are paid out over the summer months. As of June 30, 2019 and 

2018, total accrued salaries and other payroll-related expenses amounted to $323,663 and 

$440,220 respectively. 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

June 30, 2019 and 2018 

Note 7 Concentrations of risk 

The School maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally 

insured limits. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The management 

of the school believes it is not exposed to significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents. 

The School received approximately 90% and 92% of its operating revenue, which is subject to 

specific requirements, from per pupil funding from the New York City Department of 

Education during the year ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Additionally, the 

School’s grants receivable consists of approximately 100% and 68%, respectively, from the 

New York State Department of Education. 

Note 8 Contingency 

The School participates in a number of federal and state programs. These programs require that 

the School comply with certain laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements applicable to the 

programs in which it participates. All funds expended in connection with government grants 

and contracts are subject to audit by government agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, 

from such audits of government grants and contracts by government agencies is presently not 

determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the management, have a material effect on the 

financial position or results of operations. Accordingly, no provision for any such liability that 

may result has been made in the accompanying financial statements. 

Note 9 Subsequent events   

Management has evaluated its June 30, 2019 financial statements for subsequent events through 

October 29, 2019, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. Based 

on this evaluation, management has determined that no subsequent events have occurred which 

require disclosure in the financial statements.  
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first 

paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 

that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during 

our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and other matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Academic Leadership Charter 

School’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 

noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 

financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 

provisions was not an objective of our audits, and accordingly, we do not express such an 

opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that 

are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 

organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 

suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, New York 

October 29, 2019 
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Transmittal Form 
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for SUNY Authorized Charter Schools 

Charter School Name: Academic Leadership Charter School 
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School Fiscal Contact Name: Norma Hurwitz 
School Fiscal Contact Email: 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Financial Position 

as of June 30, 2019 

ASSETS 2018-19 2017-18 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid expenses 
Contributions and other receivables 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

$ 23,964,961 
439,926 

-
-
-

24,404,887 

$ 19,559,344 
302,401 

-
-
-

19,861,745 

PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net 4,094,686 3,845,287 

OTHER ASSETS 77,183 76,124 

TOTAL ASSETS 28,576,756 23,783,156 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 

Other 
TOTAL CURRENT 

 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
Deferred Rent 
All other long-term debt and notes payable, net current maturities TOTAL LONG-TE  

LIABILITIES 

$ 395,120 
323,663 
1,975 

-
-
-

720,758 

-
-
-

$ 268,738 
440,220 
36,695 

-
-
-

745,653 

-
-
-

TOTAL LIABILITIES 720,758 745,653 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

27,778,815 

77,183 

22,961,379 

76,124 



  

  
 

       

TOTAL NET ASSETS 27,855,998 23,037,503 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 
NET ASSETS 28,576,756 23,783,156 

CK - Should be zero - -



   
  

    

    
   

   
   

   
   
       
   

     
     

     

 
 
 
 

   
   

 
  

     

   

 
 

       

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

Statement of Activities 

as of June 30, 2019 

Unrestricted 

2018-19 
Temporarily 
Restricted Total 

2017-18 

Total 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District 
Resident Student Enrollment 
Students with disabilities 

Grants and Contracts 
State and local 
Federal - Title and IDEA 
Federal - Other 
Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance 

Food Service/Child Nutrition Program 

TOTAL REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 

EXPENSES 
Program Services 
Regular Education 
Special Education 
Other Programs 

Total Program Services 
Management and general 
Fundraising 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions 
Foundations 
Individuals 
Corporations 

Fundraising 
Interest income 
Miscellaneous income 

Net assets released from restriction 

$ 7,616,230 
301,950 

277,275 
589,386 

-
-
-
-

8,784,841 

$ 3,787,518 
133,364 

-
3,920,882 
431,404 

4,352,286 

4,432,555 

$ -
-
-
-

385,940 
-
-

$ 

$ 

$ 

-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

$ 

$ 

7,616,230 
301,950 

277,275 
589,386 

-
-
-
-

8,784,841 

3,787,518 
133,364 

-
3,920,882 
431,404 

-
4,352,286 

4,432,555 

-
-
-
-

385,940 
-
-

$ 

$ 

$ 

7,545,393 
372,407 

217,972 
460,714 

-
-
-
-

8,596,486 

3,737,656 
160,419 

-
3,898,075 
433,151 

-
4,331,226 

4,265,260 

-
-
-
-

181,411 
-
-



    

   

       
   

    

TOTAL SUPPORT AND OTHER REVENUE 385,940 - 385,940 181,411 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 4,818,495 - 4,818,495 4,446,671 

NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR 

PRIOR YEAR/PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 

23,037,503 

-
-
-

23,037,503 

-
18,590,832 

-

NET ASSETS END OF YEAR $ 27,855,998 $ - $ 27,855,998 $ 23,037,503 



   
   

    

    
       
       
 

     

 
   
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

 
 

     

    
   

     

    
       

     

       
       

       

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Cash Flows 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 2017-18 

CASH FLOWS - OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Increase (decrease) in net assets $ 4,818,495 $ 4,446,671 
Revenues from School Districts - -
Accounts Receivable - -
Due from School Districts - -
Depreciation 64,583 83,777 
Grants Receivable (137,525) 189,165 
Due from NYS - -
Grant revenues - -
Prepaid Expenses - 33,376 
Accounts Payable 126,382 45,674 
Accrued Expenses (116,557) 80,512 
Accrued Liabilities - -
Contributions and fund-raising activities - -
Miscellaneous sources - -
Deferred Revenue (34,720) 36,695 
Interest payments - -
Other - 18,727 
Other - -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 4,720,658 $ 4,934,597 

CASH FLOWS - INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of equipment (313,982) (267,219) 
Other (636) 

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES $ (315,041) $ (267,855) 

CASH FLOWS - FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt - -
Other - -

NET CASH PROVIDED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES $ - $ -

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 4,405,617 $ 4,666,742 
Cash at beginning of year 19,559,344 14,892,602 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 23,964,961 $ 19,559,344 

(1,059) 



   
   
    

   
 

 
                 

   
 

 
     
       

   
 

     
           
                 
   

   
   

 
    

   
 
 

 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

as of June 30, 2019 

2018-19 

Personnel Services Costs 
Administrative Staff Personnel 
Instructional Personnel 
Non-Instructional Personnel 
Total Salaries and Staff 

Fringe Benefits & Payroll Taxes 
Retirement 

No. of 
Positions 

7.25 
36.00 
-

43.25 

Regular 
Education 

$ 
-

2,387,518 
-

2,387,518 
631,880 

-

Program Services 
Special Other 
Education Education 

$ $ 
- -

83,226 -
- -

83,226 -
22,184 -

- -

$ 
Total 

-
2,470,744 

-
2,470,744 
654,064 

-

Supporting Services 
Management 

Fund-raising and General 
$ $ $ 

- 145,196 
- 87,267 
- -
- 232,463 
- 61,542 
- -

Total 

145,196 
87,267 

-
232,463 
61,542 

-
Management Company Fees 
Legal Service 
Accounting / Audit Services 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting Services 
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interes  
Repairs & Maintenance 
Insurance 
Utilities 
Supplies / Materials 
Equipment / Furnishings 
Staff Development 
Marketing / Recruitment 
Technology 
Food Service 
Student Services 
Office Expense 
Depreciation 

OTHER 

-
-
-
-
-

8,263 
40,269 

-
234,538 
61,183 
6,499 

267,375 
43,026 

-
10,629 
39,311 
57,027 

-

-
-
-
-
-

289 
1,414 

-
9,142 
2,147 
258 
9,387 
1,510 

-
421 
1,384 
2,002 

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

8,552 
41,683 

-
243,680 
63,330 
6,757 

276,762 
44,536 

-
11,050 
40,695 
59,029 

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-

83,722 
-

805 
3,922 

-
3,214 
5,959 

-
26,041 
4,191 

-
-

3,991 
5,554 

-

-
-
-

83,722 
-

805 
3,922 

-
3,214 
5,959 

-
26,041 
4,191 

-
-

3,991 
5,554 

-
Total Expenses $ 3,787,518 $ 133,364 $ - $ 3,920,882 $ - $ 431,404 $ 431,404 



   

2017-18

$ 

$ 

Total 

145,196 
2,558,011 

-
2,703,207 
715,606 

-
-
-
-

83,722 
-

9,357 
45,605 

-
246,894 
69,289 
6,757 

302,803 
48,727 

-
11,050 
44,686 
64,583 

-
4,352,286 

$ 

$ 

143,095 
2,775,669 

-
2,918,764 
716,889 

-
-
-
-

77,440 
-

6,396 
40,194 

-
254,784 
71,912 
12,802 
49,757 
41,408 

-
-

57,103 
83,777 

-
4,331,226 







      
          

Charter Funding Alphabetical By NYS School District 
* (Sum of Charter School Basic Tuition and Supplemental Basic Tuition) 
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ANNUAL BUDGET & QUARTERLY REPORT TEMPLATE 

Academic Leadership Charter School 

SCHOOL 
Name: Academic Leadership Charter School 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Contact Name: Leena Varghese 
Contact Title: Principal 
Contact Email: 
Contact Phone: 

REPORT PERIOD 
Current Academic Year: 2019-20 
Prior Academic Year: 2018-19 
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PRIOR YEAR ANNUAL BUDGET 
2018-19 QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2  QUARTER 3 QUAR  

PRIMARY/OTHER DISTRICT NAME(S) 
Actual 

Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Original 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 
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8 9 10 11 12 
45.924 

ACTUAL QUARTERLY 
TOTAL DISTRICTS/ENROLLMENT 

QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 
Revised Actual Actual Actual Actual 

0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

TER 4 

D' Column(s) 
s for the 

TER 4 
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     TER 4 

Revised 
Budgeted 
Enrollment 

ACTUAL ENROLLMENT BY QUARTER 
QUARTER 1 QUARTER 2 QUARTER 3 QUARTER 4 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 

Actual 
Enrollment 
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68,000 68,000 - 68,000 68,000 
- - - - -

68,000 68,000 - 68,000 68,000 

(41,480,000 
) 

(41,480,000 
) 

- (41,480,00 
0) 

(41,480,00 
0) - - - - -

(41,480,000) (41,480,000) - (41,480,000) (41,480,000) 

26,423,680 26,423,680 - 26,423,680 26,423,680 
- - - - -

26,423,680 26,423,680 - 26,423,680 26,423,680 

(14,988,320) (14,988,320) - (14,988,320) (14,988,320) 

(11,267,060) (11,267,060) - (11,267,060) (11,267,060) 

23,119,086 23,119,086 - - -

11,852,026 11,852,026 - (11,267,060) (11,267,060) 

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

CASH FLOW ADJUSTMENTS 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES {enter descriptions below} 

Example - Add Back Depreciation 
Other 

Total Operating Activities 
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES {enter descriptions below} 

Example - Subtract Property and Equipment Expenditures 
Other 

Total Investment Activities 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES {enter descriptions below} 

Example - Add Expected Proceeds from a Loan or Line of Credit 
Other 

Total Financing Activities 

Total Cash Flow Adjustments 

NET INCOME 

Beginning Cash Balance 

ENDING CASH BALANCE 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 

9,741,593 9,741,593 - 9,741,593 9,741,593 

6,020,333 6,020,333 - (6,020,333) (6,020,333) 
3,721,260 3,721,260 - 3,721,260 3,721,260 

Total Year VARIANCE 

Original 
Budget 

Revised 
Budget Variance 

Original 
Budget vs. 
PY Budget 

Revised 
Budget vs. 
PY Budget 

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
BALANCE SHEET 

2019-20 

Prior Year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

2018-19 As of 9/30 As of 12/31 As of 3/31 As of 6/30 
ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Accounts receivables 
Prepaid Expenses 

Contributions and other receivables 

-
-
-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS - - - - -

-PROPERTY, BUILDING AND EQUIPMENT, net - - - -

-OTHER ASSETS - - - -

TOTAL ASSETS - - - - -

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accrued payroll and benefits 
Deferred Revenue 
Current maturities of long-term debt 
Short Term Debt - Bonds, Notes Payable 

Other 

-
-
-
-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES - - - - -

-

TOTAL LIABILITIES - - - - -

LONG-TERM DEBT and NOTES PAYABLE, net current maturities - - - -

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

-
-

- - - -
- - - -

TOTAL NET ASSETS - - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS - - - - -
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Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

- 2,435,398 -
- 1,031,941 -
- 1,403,457 -
- 528 -

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 
- 2,435,398 - -
- 1,433,316 - -
- 1,002,083 - -
- 528 - -

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20 

1st Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 

Current 
Actual Budget Variance 

2nd Quarter - 10/1 - 12/31 3rd Quarter 

Current 
Actual Budget Variance Actual 

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate 
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 ) 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding) 

16,150 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

16,150 
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2,132,309 - 2,132,309 -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

- 2,132,309 - - 2,132,309 - -
83,583 - 83,583 -Special Education Revenue 

Grants 
Stimulus 
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development) 
Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

- - - -
- - - -

28,529 - 28,529 -
- - - -
- - - -

- 2,244,420 - - 2,244,420 - -

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs 
Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 

10,869 - 10,869 -
104,256 - 104,256 -

14,722 - 14,722 -
- - - -

Grants 
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 
Other 

- - - -
- - - -



 
    

   
  

 
  

 
    

 

      

  

  
   

 
 

 
  

           
          

        

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

50,000 - 50,000 -
- - - -

11,132 - 11,132 -
-

Other - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES - 129,847 - - 129,847 - -

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations 
Fundraising 
Erate Reimbursement 
Earnings on Investments 
Interest Income 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 
OTHER 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE - 2,435,398 

- - -
- 61,132 - - 61,132 - -

- - 2,435,398 - -

Total Revenue - 2,435,398 - - 2,435,398 - -
Total Expenses - 1,031,941 - - 1,433,316 - -
Net Income - 1,403,457 - - 1,002,083 - -
Actual Student Enrollment - 528 - - 528 - -

1st Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 2nd Quarter - 10/1 - 12/31 3rd Quarter 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

Actual 
Current 
Budget Variance Actual 

Current 
Budget Variance Actual 
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Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

- 2,435,398 -
- 1,031,941 -
- 1,403,457 -
- 528 -

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 
- 2,435,398 - -
- 1,433,316 - -
- 1,002,083 - -
- 528 - -

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

EXPENSES Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

1st Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 

Current 
Actual Budget Variance 

2nd Quarter - 10/1 - 12/31 3rd Quarter 

Current 
Actual Budget Variance Actual 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

73,492 - 62,993 -
40,385 - 34,615 -

- - - -
- - - -

40,385 - 34,615 -
30,154 - 25,846 -

- 184,415 - - 158,070 - -

Executive Management 
Instructional Management 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 
CFO / Director of Finance 
Operation / Business Manager 
Administrative Staff 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 
Teachers - SPED 
Substitute Teachers 
Teaching Assistants 
Specialty Teachers 
Aides 
Therapists & Counselors 
Other 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

170,604 - 511,812 -
5,385 - 16,154 -

- - - -
- - - -

14,885 - 44,654 -
- - - -
- - - -

60,000 - 60,000 -
- 250,873 - - 632,619 - -

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse 
Librarian 
Custodian 
Security 
Other 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

-
-
-
-
-
-

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

- - - - - - -

- 435,288 - - 790,689 - -SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS -

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 

Retirement / Pension 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

36,162 - 65,687 -
127,389 - 127,389 -

11,483 - 20,859 -
- 175,034 - - 213,935 - -

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS -
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit - - - -
Legal 2,600 - 2,600 -
Management Company Fee - - - -
Nurse Services - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch 416 - 1,248 -
Payroll Services 4,160 - 4,160 -
Special Ed Services - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 19,240 - 19,240 -

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES - 26,416 - - 27,248 - -

Total Revenue - 2,435,398 - - 2,435,398 - -
Total Expenses - 1,031,941 - - 1,433,316 - -
Net Income - 1,403,457 - - 1,002,083 - -
Actual Student Enrollment - 528 - - 528 - -

1st Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 2nd Quarter - 10/1 - 12/31 3rd Quarter 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

Actual 
Current 
Budget Variance Actual 

Current 
Budget Variance Actual 
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Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

- 2,435,398 -
- 1,031,941 -
- 1,403,457 -
- 528 -

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 
- 2,435,398 - -
- 1,433,316 - -
- 1,002,083 - -
- 528 - -

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

1st Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 

Current 
Actual Budget Variance 

2nd Quarter - 10/1 - 12/31 3rd Quarter 

Current 
Actual Budget Variance Actual 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 
Board Expenses 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials 
Textbooks / Workbooks 
Supplies & Materials other 
Equipment / Furniture 
Telephone 
Technology 
Student Testing & Assessment 
Field Trips 
Transportation (student) 
Student Services - other 
Office Expense 
Staff Development 
Staff Recruitment 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 
School Meals / Lunch 
Travel (Staff) 
Fundraising 

Other 
TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

780 - 780 -
13,950 - 13,950 -
11,132 - 11,132 -
45,000 - 45,000 -

- - - -
22,100 - 22,100 -

2,600 - 2,600 -
13,780 - 13,780 -

3,900 - 3,900 -
2,080 - 6,240 -

- - - -
1,040 - 3,120 -

15,340 - 15,340 -
4,680 - 4,680 -

12,500 - 12,500 -
23,920 - 23,920 -

1,820 - 1,820 -
1,560 - 1,560 -

- - - -
830 - 830 -

- 177,012 - - 183,252 - -

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance 
Janitorial 
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture 
Security 

Utilities 
TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

18,158 - 18,158 -
3,640 - 3,640 -

170,094 - 170,094 -
3,380 - 3,380 -

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

- 195,272 - - 195,272 - -

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY 
DEFERRED RENT 

22,920 - 22,920 -
- - - -
- - - -
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 

TOTAL EXPENSES - 1,031,941 - - 1,433,316 - -

NET INCOME - 1,403,457 - - 1,002,083 - -

Total Revenue - 2,435,398 - - 2,435,398 - -
Total Expenses - 1,031,941 - - 1,433,316 - -
Net Income - 1,403,457 - - 1,002,083 - -
Actual Student Enrollment - 528 - - 528 - -

1st Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 2nd Quarter - 10/1 - 12/31 3rd Quarter 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

Actual 
Current 
Budget Variance Actual 

Current 
Budget Variance Actual 
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Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

- 2,435,398 -
- 1,031,941 -
- 1,403,457 -
- 528 -

2019-20ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 
- 2,435,398 - -
- 1,433,316 - -
- 1,002,083 - -3rd Quarter - 528 - -

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

1st Quarter - 7/1 - 9/30 

Current 
Actual Budget Variance 

2nd Quarter - 10/1 - 12/31 3rd Quarter 

Current 
Actual Budget Variance Actual 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE - 528 - - 528 - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - -
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 ) - - - - - - -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT - 528 - - 528 - -

REVENUE PER PUPIL - 4,611 - - 4,611 - -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL - 1,954 - - 2,714 - -
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2,435,398 - - 2,435,398 -
1,568,427 - - 1,986,649 -

866,971 - - 448,749 -
528 - - 528 -

4th Quarter - 4/1 - 6/30 

Current 
Budget Variance Actual 

Current 
Budget Variance 

2,132,309 - 2,132,309 -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

2,132,309 - - 2,132,309 -
83,583 - 83,583 -

- - - -
- - - -

28,529 - 28,529 -
- - - -
- - - -

2,244,420 - - 2,244,420 -

10,869 - 10,869 -
104,256 - 104,256 -

14,722 - 14,722 -
- - - -

- - - -
- - - -

CHARTER SCHOOL 
Plan 

Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20 

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate 
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 ) 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding) 
Special Education Revenue 
Grants 

Stimulus 
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development) 
Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs 
Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 
Other 

     

 

    

 
 

 
  

          
        

   
    

  

        
        
  

      

   

    

   
  

 
   

    

      

16,150 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

16,150 



 
 

 
  

          
        

 
    

   
  

 
  

 
    

 

      

  

     

 

    

- - - -
129,847 - - 129,847 -

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -

50,000 - 50,000 -
- - - -

11,132 - 11,132 -
- - - -

61,132 - - 61,132 -

2,435,398 - - 2,435,398 -

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

Other 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations 
Fundraising 
Erate Reimbursement 
Earnings on Investments 
Interest Income 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 
OTHER 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

2,435,398 - - 2,435,398 -
1,568,427 - - 1,986,649 -

866,971 - - 448,749 -
528 - - 528 -

4th Quarter - 4/1 - 6/30 

Current 
Budget Variance Actual 

Current 
Budget Variance 

CHARTER SCHOOL 
Plan 

Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 
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CHARTER SCHOOL 
Plan 

Total Revenue 2,435,398 - - 2,435,398 -
Total Expenses 1,568,427 - - 1,986,649 -
Net Income 866,971 - - 448,749 -
Actual Student Enrollment 528 - - 528 -

Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 4th Quarter - 4/1 - 6/30 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

Current Current 
Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

EXPENSES Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 
Instructional Management 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 
CFO / Director of Finance 
Operation / Business Manager 
Administrative Staff 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

73,492 - 62,993 -
40,385 - 34,615 -

- - - -
- - - -

40,385 - 34,615 -
30,154 - 25,846 -

184,415 - - 158,070 -

597,113 - 938,321 -
18,846 - 29,615 -

- - - -
- - - -

52,096 - 81,865 -
- - - -
- - - -

60,000 - 60,000 -
728,056 - - 1,109,802 -

- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - -
- - - - -

912,471 - - 1,267,872 -

75,805 - 105,330 -
127,389 - 127,389 -

24,072 - 33,448 -
227,265 - - 266,167 -

1,139,736 - - 1,534,038 -

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 
Teachers - SPED 
Substitute Teachers 
Teaching Assistants 
Specialty Teachers 
Aides 
Therapists & Counselors 
Other 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse 
Librarian 
Custodian 
Security 
Other 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

-
-
-
-
-
-

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS -

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 

Retirement / Pension 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS -
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- - 23,920 -
2,600 - 2,600 -

- - - -
- - - -

1,248 - 1,248 -
4,160 - 4,160 -

- - - -
- - - -

19,240 - 19,240 -
27,248 - - 51,168 -

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit 
Legal 
Management Company Fee 
Nurse Services 
Food Service / School Lunch 
Payroll Services 
Special Ed Services 
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 

2,435,398 - - 2,435,398 -
1,568,427 - - 1,986,649 -

866,971 - - 448,749 -
528 - - 528 -

4th Quarter - 4/1 - 6/30 

Current 
Budget Variance Actual 

Current 
Budget Variance 

CHARTER SCHOOL 
Plan 

Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 

CHARTER SCHOOL 
Plan 
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CHARTER SCHOOL 
Plan 

Total Revenue 2,435,398 - - 2,435,398 -
Total Expenses 1,568,427 - - 1,986,649 -
Net Income 866,971 - - 448,749 -
Actual Student Enrollment 528 - - 528 -

Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 4th Quarter - 4/1 - 6/30 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

Current Current 
Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 
Board Expenses 780 - 780 -
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 13,950 - 13,950 -
Special Ed Supplies & Materials 11,132 - 11,132 -
Textbooks / Workbooks 45,000 - 45,000 -
Supplies & Materials other - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 22,100 - 22,100 -
Telephone 2,600 - 2,600 -
Technology 13,780 - 13,780 -
Student Testing & Assessment 3,900 - 3,900 -
Field Trips 6,240 - 6,240 -
Transportation (student) - - - -
Student Services - other 3,120 - 3,120 -
Office Expense 15,340 - 15,340 -
Staff Development 4,680 - 4,680 -
Staff Recruitment 12,500 - 12,500 -
Student Recruitment / Marketing 23,920 - 23,920 -
School Meals / Lunch 1,820 - 1,820 -
Travel (Staff) 1,560 - 1,560 -
Fundraising - - - -
Other 830 - 830 -

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 183,252 - - 183,252 -

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance 18,158 - 18,158 -
Janitorial 3,640 - 3,640 -
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest 170,094 - 170,094 -
Repairs & Maintenance 3,380 - 3,380 -
Equipment / Furniture - - - -
Security - - - -
Utilities - - - -

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 195,272 - - 195,272 -

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 22,920 - 22,920 -
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY - - - -
DEFERRED RENT - - - -
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1,568,427 - - 1,986,649 -

866,971 - - 448,749 -

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

NET INCOME 

2,435,398 - - 2,435,398 -
1,568,427 - - 1,986,649 -

866,971 - - 448,749 -
528 - - 528 -

4th Quarter - 4/1 - 6/30 

Current 
Budget Variance Actual 

Current 
Budget Variance 

CHARTER SCHOOL 
Plan 

Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 

CHARTER SCHOOL 
Plan 

Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 
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CHARTER SCHOOL 
Plan 

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

2,435,398 

1,568,427 
866,971 Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 528 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

2,435,398 

1,986,649 
448,749 

528 

-
-
-
-

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

Quarter - 1/1 - 3/31 

Current 
Budget Variance 

4th Quarter - 4/1 - 6/30 

Current 
Actual Budget Variance 

528 - - 528 -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -

528 - - 528 -

4,611 - - 4,611 -

2,970 - - 3,762 -

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 ) 

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 

REVENUE PER PUPIL 

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 
- - - 9,741,593 (9,741,593) - - 9,741,5 

- - - 6,020,333 6,020,333 - - 6,020,3 
- - - 3,721,260 (3,721,260) - - 3,721,2 
- - - - -

TOTALS AND VARIANCE ANALYSIS 

Actual 

Current 
Budget 
(Current 
Quarter) 

Actual 
vs. 

Current 
Budget 

Current 
Budget - TY 

Actual 
vs. 

Current 
Budget TY 

Original 
Budget 
(Current 
Quarter) 

Actual 
vs. 

Original 
Budget 

Original 
Budget -

- - - 8,529,235 (8,529,235) - - 8,529,2 
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - 8,529,235 (8,529,235) - - 8,529,2 
- - - 334,331 (334,331) - - 334,3 

- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - 114,114 (114,114) - - 114,1 
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - 8,977,680 (8,977,680) - - 8,977,6 

- - - 43,477 (43,477) - - 43,4 
- - - 417,022 (417,022) - - 417,0 
- - - 58,888 (58,888) - - 58,8 
- - - - - - -

- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20 

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate 
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 16,150 
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 ) -

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding) 16,150 
Special Education Revenue 
Grants 

Stimulus 
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development) 
Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs 
Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 
Other 



-
87

-
-
-
-

00
-

26
-

26

93

93
33
60

TY

 
 

 
  

          
        

 
    

   
  

 
  

 
    

 

      

  

   
   

   

  
 

  

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 
Total Revenue - - - 9,741,593 (9,741,593) - - 9,741,5 

Total Expenses - - - 6,020,333 6,020,333 - - 6,020,3 
Net Income - - - 3,721,260 (3,721,260) - - 3,721,2 
Actual Student Enrollment - - - - -

TOTALS AND VARIANCE ANALYSIS 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Current Actual Actual Original Actual 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed Budget vs. Current vs. Budget vs. Original 

(Current Current Budget - TY Current (Current Original Budget -
Actual Quarter) Budget Budget TY Quarter) Budget 

Other - - - - - - -
- - - 519,387 (519,387) - - 519,3 TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations - - - - - - -
Fundraising - - - - - - -
Erate Reimbursement - - - - - - -
Earnings on Investments - - - - - - -
Interest Income - - - 200,000 (200,000) - - 200,0 
Food Service (Income from meals) - - - - - - -
Text Book - - - 44,526 (44,526) - - 44,5 
OTHER - - - - - - -

- - - 244,526 (244,526) - - 244,5 TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE - - - 9,741,593 (9,741,593) - - 9,741,5 
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- - - 272,969 272,969 - - 272,9 
- - - 150,000 150,000 - - 150,0 
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - 150,000 150,000 - - 150,0 
- - - 112,000 112,000 - - 112,0 
- - - 684,969 684,969 - - 684,9 

2,217,8 
70,0 

193,5 

240,0 
2,721,3 

3,406,3 

282,9 
509,5 

89,8 
882,4 

4,288,7 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

EXPENSES Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Executive Management 
Instructional Management 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 
CFO / Director of Finance 
Operation / Business Manager 
Administrative Staff 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 
- - - 9,741,593 (9,741,593) - - 9,741,5 

- - - 6,020,333 6,020,333 - - 6,020,3 
- - - 3,721,260 (3,721,260) - - 3,721,2 
- - - - -

TOTALS AND VARIANCE ANALYSIS 

Actual 

Current 
Budget 
(Current 
Quarter) 

Actual 
vs. 

Current 
Budget 

Current 
Budget - TY 

Actual 
vs. 

Current 
Budget TY 

Original 
Budget 
(Current 
Quarter) 

Actual 
vs. 

Original 
Budget 

Original 
Budget -

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 
Teachers - SPED 
Substitute Teachers 
Teaching Assistants 
Specialty Teachers 
Aides 
Therapists & Counselors 
Other 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

2,217,850 
70,000 

-
-

193,500 
-
-

240,000 
2,721,350 

2,217,850 
70,000 

-
-

193,500 
-
-

240,000 
2,721,350 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
-
-
-
-
-
-

Nurse 
Librarian 
Custodian 
Security 
Other 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS - - - - 3,406,319 3,406,319 - -

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
- - - 282,984 282,984 - -Payroll Taxes 

Fringe / Employee Benefits - - - 509,554 509,554 - -
- - - 89,863 89,863 - -Retirement / Pension 
- - - 882,401 882,401 - -TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS - - - - 4,288,720 4,288,720 - -
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ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 
Total Revenue - - - 9,741,593 (9,741,593) - - 9,741,5 

Total Expenses - - - 6,020,333 6,020,333 - - 6,020,3 
Net Income - - - 3,721,260 (3,721,260) - - 3,721,2 
Actual Student Enrollment - - - - -

TOTALS AND VARIANCE ANALYSIS 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Current Actual Actual Original Actual 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed Budget vs. Current vs. Budget vs. Original 

(Current Current Budget - TY Current (Current Original Budget -
Actual Quarter) Budget Budget TY Quarter) Budget 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
- - - 23,920 23,920 - - 23,9 

Legal 
Accounting / Audit 

- - - 10,400 10,400 - - 10,4 
Management Company Fee - - - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - 4,160 4,160 - - 4,1 
Payroll Services - - - 16,640 16,640 - - 16,6 
Special Ed Services - - - - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting - - - 76,960 76,960 - - 76,9 

- - - 132,080 132,080 - - 132,0 TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 
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- - - 3,120 3,120 - - 3,1 
- - - 55,800 55,800 - - 55,8 
- - - 44,526 44,526 - - 44,5 
- - - 180,000 180,000 - - 180,0 
- - - - - - -
- - - 88,400 88,400 - - 88,4 
- - - 10,400 10,400 - - 10,4 
- - - 55,120 55,120 - - 55,1 
- - - 15,600 15,600 - - 15,6 
- - - 20,800 20,800 - - 20,8 
- - - - - - -
- - - 10,400 10,400 - - 10,4 
- - - 61,360 61,360 - - 61,3 
- - - 18,720 18,720 - - 18,7 
- - - 50,000 50,000 - - 50,0 
- - - 95,680 95,680 - - 95,6 
- - - 7,280 7,280 - - 7,2 
- - - 6,240 6,240 - - 6,2 
- - - - - - -
- - - 3,320 3,320 - - 3,3 
- - - 726,766 726,766 - - 726,7 

- - - 72,632 72,632 - - 72,6 
- - - 14,560 14,560 - - 14,5 
- - - 680,375 680,375 - - 680,3 
- - - 13,520 13,520 - - 13,5 
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - 781,087 781,087 - - 781,0 

- - - 91,680 91,680 - - 91,6 
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 
Board Expenses 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials 
Textbooks / Workbooks 
Supplies & Materials other 
Equipment / Furniture 
Telephone 
Technology 
Student Testing & Assessment 
Field Trips 
Transportation (student) 
Student Services - other 
Office Expense 
Staff Development 
Staff Recruitment 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 
School Meals / Lunch 
Travel (Staff) 
Fundraising 

Other 
TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance 
Janitorial 
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture 
Security 

Utilities 
TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY 
DEFERRED RENT 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

2019-20 
- - - 9,741,593 (9,741,593) - - 9,741,5 

- - - 6,020,333 6,020,333 - - 6,020,3 
- - - 3,721,260 (3,721,260) - - 3,721,2 
- - - - -

TOTALS AND VARIANCE ANALYSIS 

Actual 

Current 
Budget 
(Current 
Quarter) 

Actual 
vs. 

Current 
Budget 

Current 
Budget - TY 

Actual 
vs. 

Current 
Budget TY 

Original 
Budget 
(Current 
Quarter) 

Actual 
vs. 

Original 
Budget 

Original 
Budget -

 
 

 
  

          
        

 
 

     
    

  
   

  
 

   
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
   

 

  

   

         
   

  

    

  
  
 

Budget / Operating Plan 
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93
33
60

TY

 
 

 
  

          
        

 

 

   
   

   

  
 

  

- - - 6,020,333 6,020,333 - - 6,020,3 

- - - 3,721,260 (3,721,260) - - 3,721,2 

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

NET INCOME 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 
- - - 9,741,593 (9,741,593) - - 9,741,5 

- - - 6,020,333 6,020,333 - - 6,020,3 
- - - 3,721,260 (3,721,260) - - 3,721,2 
- - - - -

TOTALS AND VARIANCE ANALYSIS 

Actual 

Current 
Budget 
(Current 
Quarter) 

Actual 
vs. 

Current 
Budget 

Current 
Budget - TY 

Actual 
vs. 

Current 
Budget TY 

Original 
Budget 
(Current 
Quarter) 

Actual 
vs. 

Original 
Budget 

Original 
Budget -
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2019-20ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 
Budget / Operating Plan 

2019-20 
Total Revenue - - - 9,741,593 (9,741,593) - - 9,741,5 

Total Expenses - - - 6,020,333 6,020,333 - - 6,020,3 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

-
-

-
-

-
-

3,721,260 (3,721,260) - -TOTALS AND VARIANCE ANALYSIS - -
3,721,2 

TOTALS AND VARIANCE ANALYSIS 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

Current 
Budget 
(Current 

Actual 
vs. 

Current 
Current 

Budget - TY 

Actual 
vs. 

Current 

Original 
Budget 
(Current 

Actual 
vs. 

Original 
Original 

Budget -
Actual Quarter) Budget Budget TY Quarter) Budget 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* * Enrollment Data Based on Last Actual Quarter Completed 
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
- - - - - -
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 ) - - - - -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT - - - - -

REVENUE PER PUPIL - - - - -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL - - - - -
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Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

(9,741,593) 
6,020,333 

(3,721,260) 

-
-
-
-

-
-
-

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

REVENUE 
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 2019-20 

Per Pupil Revenue Per Pupil Rate 
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 ) 

TOTAL Per Pupil Revenue (Weighted Average Per Pupil Funding) 

16,150 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

16,150 
Special Education Revenue 
Grants 

Stimulus 
DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Development) 
Other 

NYC DoE Rental Assistance 
Other 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING 
IDEA Special Needs 
Title I 
Title Funding - Other 
School Food Service (Free Lunch) 
Grants 

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 
Other 
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Actual 
vs. 

Original 
Budget TY 

(8,529,235) 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

(8,529,235) 
(334,331) 

-
-

(114,114) 
-
-

(8,977,680) 

(43,477) 
(417,022) 

(58,888) 
-

-
-

PY Actual (PY TY 
/ No. of 

COMPLETED 
Actual CY 
Quarters) 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-

Actual CY 
vs. 

Actual PY 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-

-
-



 
 

 
  

          
        

 
    

   
  

 
  

 
    

 

      

  

 

   
  

 

 

 
- - -

(519,387) - -

- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -

(200,000) - -
- - -

(44,526) - -
- - -

(244,526) - -

(9,741,593) - -

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

Other 
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE 
Contributions and Donations 
Fundraising 
Erate Reimbursement 
Earnings on Investments 
Interest Income 
Food Service (Income from meals) 
Text Book 
OTHER 

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 

TOTAL REVENUE 

(9,741,593) - -
6,020,333 - -

(3,721,260) - -
-

Actual 
vs. 

Original 
Budget TY 

PY Actual (PY TY 
/ No. of 

COMPLETED 
Actual CY 

Actual CY 
vs. 

Actual PY 
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Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

(9,741,593) - -
6,020,333 - -

(3,721,260) - -
-

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

EXPENSES Quarter 0 
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions 

Actual PY Actual (PY TY 
vs. / No. of Actual CY 

Original COMPLETED vs. 
Budget TY Actual CY Actual PY 

272,969 - -
150,000 - -

- - -
- - -

150,000 - -
112,000 - -
684,969 - -

2,217,850 - -
70,000 - -

- - -
- - -

193,500 - -
- - -
- - -

240,000 - -
2,721,350 - -

- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -

Executive Management 
Instructional Management 
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 
CFO / Director of Finance 
Operation / Business Manager 
Administrative Staff 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Teachers - Regular 
Teachers - SPED 
Substitute Teachers 
Teaching Assistants 
Specialty Teachers 
Aides 
Therapists & Counselors 
Other 

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS 
Nurse 
Librarian 
Custodian 
Security 
Other 

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 

-
-
-
-
-
-

3,406,319 - -

282,984 - -
509,554 - -

89,863 - -
882,401 - -

4,288,720 - -

-SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 
Payroll Taxes 
Fringe / Employee Benefits 

Retirement / Pension 

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 

-TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 
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23,920 - -
10,400 - -

- - -
- - -

4,160 - -
16,640 - -

- - -
- - -

76,960 - -
132,080 - -

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 
Accounting / Audit 
Legal 
Management Company Fee 
Nurse Services 
Food Service / School Lunch 
Payroll Services 
Special Ed Services 
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) 
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 

(9,741,593) - -
6,020,333 - -

(3,721,260) - -
-

Actual 
vs. 

Original 
Budget TY 

PY Actual (PY TY 
/ No. of 

COMPLETED 
Actual CY 

Actual CY 
vs. 

Actual PY 
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Page 61 of 64 

3,120 - -
55,800 - -
44,526 - -

180,000 - -
- - -

88,400 - -
10,400 - -
55,120 - -
15,600 - -
20,800 - -

- - -
10,400 - -
61,360 - -
18,720 - -
50,000 - -
95,680 - -

7,280 - -
6,240 - -

- - -
3,320 - -

726,766 - -

72,632 - -
14,560 - -

680,375 - -
13,520 - -

- - -
- - -
- - -

781,087 - -

91,680 - -
- - -
- - -

Total Revenue 

Total Expenses 
Net Income 
Actual Student Enrollment 

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 
Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 

SCHOOL OPERATIONS 
Board Expenses 
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 
Special Ed Supplies & Materials 
Textbooks / Workbooks 
Supplies & Materials other 
Equipment / Furniture 
Telephone 
Technology 
Student Testing & Assessment 
Field Trips 
Transportation (student) 
Student Services - other 
Office Expense 
Staff Development 
Staff Recruitment 
Student Recruitment / Marketing 
School Meals / Lunch 
Travel (Staff) 
Fundraising 

Other 
TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 
Insurance 
Janitorial 
Building and Land Rent / Lease / Facility Finance Interest 
Repairs & Maintenance 
Equipment / Furniture 
Security 

Utilities 
TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 
RESERVES / CONTINGENCY 
DEFERRED RENT 

(9,741,593) - -
6,020,333 - -

(3,721,260) - -
-

Actual 
vs. 

Original 
Budget TY 

PY Actual (PY TY 
/ No. of 

COMPLETED 
Actual CY 

Actual CY 
vs. 

Actual PY 



 
 

 
  

          
        

 

 

 

   
  

 

 

 
- -

Total Revenue (9,741,593) - -
Total Expenses 6,020,333 - -
Net Income (3,721,260) - -
Actual Student Enrollment -

Actual PY Actual (PY TY 

Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed 
*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance 

vs. / No. of Actual CY 
Original COMPLETED vs. 

Budget TY Actual CY Actual PY 
TOTAL EXPENSES 6,020,333 

NET INCOME (3,721,260) - -
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-
-
-

Total Revenue (9,741,593) - -
Total Expenses 6,020,333 - -
Net Income (3,721,260) - -
Actual Student Enrollment -

*NOTE: Enrollment, Revenue and Expediture Data IN the 'Total and Variance Actual PY Actual (PY TY 

Analysis' Section is Based on LAST ACTUAL Quarter Completed vs. / No. of Actual CY 
Original COMPLETED vs. 

Budget TY Actual CY Actual PY 

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* 
NYC CHANCELLOR'S OFFICE - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
ALL OTHER School Districts: ( Count = 0 ) - -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT - -

REVENUE PER PUPIL - -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL - -

Page 63 of 64 



  
    

   

  

         
     

     
     

       

          

Annual Report Requirement 
for SUNY Authorized Charter Schools 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOL 

2019-20 

Administrative $0.00expenditures per pupil: 

Per NYS Statute Administrative expenditures per pupil: the sum of all 
general administration salaries and other general 
administration expenditures divided by the total 
number of enrolled students. Employee benefit 
costs or expenditures should not be reported here. 

*NOTE: THIS TAB ONLY NEEDS TO BE COMPLETED FOR Q4 
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Entry 8 BOT Table 
Created: 07/11/2019 • Last updated: 07/24/2019 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide information for VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools are required to provide 

information for all --VOTING and NON-VOTING-- trustees. 

1. Current Board Member Information (Enter info for each BOT member) 

Trustee 
Name 
and 
Email 
Address 

1 
James 
Sander 

2 
Lucas 
Doe 

3 

4 

Christoph 
er 
Brignola 

Stephen
Wasserm 
an 

5 
Fatoumat 
a Camara 

6 

7 

8 

9 

Position 
on the 
Board 

Chair 

Treasurer 

Vice 
Chair 

Secretary 

Trustee/M
ember 

1a. Are there more than 9 

members of the Board of 
Trustees? 

Committ 
ee 
Affiliation 
s 

Finance, 
Real 
Estate 

Finance 

Educatio 
n 

Finance 

Educatio 
n 

No 

Voting
Member 

Number 
of Terms 

Per By-
Laws 

Served 

(Y/N) 

Yes 2 

Yes 2 

Yes 2 

Yes 1 

Yes 1 

Start 
Date of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

10/11/20
17 

10/11/20
17 

10/11/20
17 

09/05/20
18 

04/18/20
19 

End Date 
of 
Current 
Term 
(MM/DD/Y
YYY) 

Board 
Meetings
Attended 
During
2018-19 

4/30/202
0 

12 

12/31/20
19 

12 

10/20/20
19 

12 

09/30/20
20 

10 

04/30/20
21 

5 or less 
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2. INFORMATION ABOUT MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1. SUNY-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide response relative to VOTING Trustees only. 
2. REGENTS, NYCDOE, and BUFFALO BOE-AUTHORIZED charter schools provide a response 

relative to all trustees. 

a. Total Number of BOT Members on 
June 30, 2019 

b.Total Number of Members Added 
During 2018-19 

c. Total Number of Members who 
Departed during 2018-19 

d.Total Number of members in 2018-19, 
as set by in Bylaws, Resolution or
Minutes 

3. Number of Board meetings 

held during 2018-19 

4. Number of Board meetings 

scheduled for 2019-20 

Thank you. 

5 

2 

1 

6 

12 

12 

2 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	

Entry 10 Enrollment and Retention of Special 
Populations 
Created: 07/11/2019 • Last updated: 07/19/2019 

Instructions for Reporting Enrollment and Retention Strategies 

Describe the efforts the charter school has made in 2018-19 toward meeting targets to attract and retain 

enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners/Multilingual learners, and students who 

are economically disadvantaged. In addition, describe the school’s plans for meeting or making progress 

toward meeting its enrollment and retention targets in 2019-20. 

ACADEMIC LEADERSHIP CHARTER SCHOOLSection Heading 

Recruitment/Attraction Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Recruitment Efforts in 2018-19 

Econom The majority of students in District 7 qualify
ically for free and reduced lunch. We advertised in 
Disadva the local district and students in the local 
ntaged district receive preference in our lottery. 

English
Langua 
ge An English Language Learner preference was
Learner added to our lottery. We also partnered with
s/Multili a local Spanish newspaper to inform families
ngual about our school. 
Learner 
s 

During the 2018-2019 school year, ourStudent school has worked to actively communicates with evaluation needs and IEP goals with families.Disabilit We have also worked with our local CSE to ies ensure students' needs are being met. 

Describe Recruitment Plans in 2019-20 

We will continue to advertise within the local 
district and students in this district will 
continue to receive preference in our lottery. 

We will continue to offer preference to
English language Learners and will continue
to advertise with local newspapers and
agencies. 

We will work to provide additional training to
teachers to identify students for evaluation.
We will continue to work with our local CSE to 
ensure that our students needs are being
met and to recruit additional students with 
IEPs. 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	

Retention Efforts Toward Meeting Targets 

Describe Retention Efforts in 2018-19 Describe Retention Plans in 2019-20 

Econom We provide preference to students within the We will continue to provide preference toically local district which is at over 90% students within the local district which is at Disadva economically disadvantaged. over 90% economically disadvantaged. ntaged 

English
Langua 
ge We worked to provide additional targetedLearner instruction for these students and tracked s/Multili their data separately to monitor growth. ngual
Learner 
s 

We worked to provide additional targeted
instruction for these students and tracked 

Student their data separately to monitor growth. We
s with have also worked with our local CSE to 
Disabilit ensure students' needs are being met. We
ies worked to provide additional targeted

instruction for these students and tracked 
their data separately to monitor growth. 

We will continue to provide additional
targeted instruction for these students and
tracked their data separately to monitor
growth. 

We will work to provide additional training to
teachers to identify students for evaluation.
We will continue to work with our local CSE to 
ensure that our students needs are being
met and to recruit additional students with 
IEPs. We will continue to provide additional
targeted instruction for these students and
tracked their data separately to monitor
growth. 
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Entry 11 Classroom Teacher and Administrator 

Attrition 
Last updated: 07/11/2019 

Report changes in teacher and administrator staffing. 

Instructions for completing the Classroom Teacher and Administrator Attrition Tables 

Charter schools must complete the tables titled 2018-2019 Classroom Teacher and 

Administrator Attrition to report changes in teacher and administrator staffing 

during the 2018-2019 school year. Please provide the full time equivalent (FTE) of 

staff on June 30, 2018; the FTE for any departed staff from July 1, 2018 through June 

30, 2019; the FTE for added staff from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019; and the 

FTE of staff added in newly created positions from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 

using the tables provided. 

1. Classroom Teacher Attrition Table 

FTE Classroom FTE Classroom FTE Classroom 
Teachers on 
6/30/18 

Teachers 
Departed 7/1/18
– 6/30/19 

Teachers Filling
Vacant Positions 
7/1/18 – 6/30/19 

21 5 7 

2. Administrator Position Attrition Table 

FTE 
Administrative 
Positions on 
6/30/18 

3 

FTE 
Administrators 
Departed 7/1/18
– 6/30/19 

0 

FTE 
Administrators 
Filling Vacant
Positions 7/1/18
– 6/30/19 

0 

FTE Classroom FTE of 
Teachers Added Classroom 
in New Positions Teachers on 
7/1/18 - 6/30/19 6/3019 

7 18 

FTE FTE 
Administrators Administrative 
Added in New Positions on 
Positions 7/1/18
- 6/30/19 

6/30/19 

0 3 

1 / 2 



	 	

	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

		
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

	

3. Tell your school's story 

Charter schools may provide additional information in this section of the Annual 
Report about their respective teacher and administrator attrition rates as some 

teacher or administrator departures do not reflect advancement or movement within 

the charter school networks. Schools may provide additional detail to reflect a 

teacher’s advancement up the ladder to a leadership position within the network or 

an administrator’s movement to lead a new network charter school. 

(No response) 

4. Charter schools must ensure that all prospective employees receive clearance 

through the NYSED Office of School Personnel Review and Accountability (OSPRA) 

prior to employment. After an employee has been cleared, schools are required to 

maintain proof of such clearance in the file of each employee. For the safety of all 
students, charter schools must take immediate steps to terminate the employment of 

individuals who have been denied clearance. Once the employees have been 

terminated, the school must terminate the request for clearance in the TEACH 

system. 

Have all employees have been cleared through the NYSED TEACH system? 

Yes 

5. For perspective or current employees whose clearance has been denied, have you 

terminated their employment and removed them from the TEACH system? 

Yes 

Thank you 

2 / 2 
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AUGUST 2019 

S M T W T F S 

1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

OCTOBER 2019 
S M T W Th F S 

1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 

27 28 29 30 31 

DECEMBER 2019 

S M T W Th F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30 31 

FEBRUARY 2020 

S M T W Th F S 

1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 

APRIL 2020 
S M T W Th F S 

1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 

JUNE 2020 

S M T W Th F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 

SEPTEMBER 2019 
S M T W Th F S 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
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15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
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29 30 

NOVEMBER 2019 
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1 2 
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JANUARY 2020 
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MARCH 2020 
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29 30 31 

MAY 2020 
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17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
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31 

JULY 2020 
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1 2 3 4 
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19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31 

Academic Leadership Charter 
School 2019-2020 Calendar 

Monday, September 2- Labor Day School 
Closed 

Thursday, September 5- First Day of School 

Monday, September 30-Tuesday October 
1- Rosh Hashanah School Closed 

Wednesday, October 9- Yom Kippur School 
Closed 

Monday October 14- Columbus Day School 
Closed 

Tuesday, November 5- Election Day. 
Students do not attend. Staff in attendance 

Monday, November 11- Veterans Day. 
School Closed 

Thursday, November 14-Parent Teacher 
Conference(Afternoon & Evening) HALF-
DAY 12:30PM DISMISSAL 

Wednesday, November 27- HALF- DAY 
12:30 DISMISSAL 

Thursday, November 28-Friday, November 
29- Thanksgiving Holiday School Closed 

Monday, December 23-Wednesday, 
January 1- Winter Recess School Closed 

Monday, January 20- Dr. Martin Luther King, 
Jr. Day School Closed 

Monday, February 17- Friday, February 21-
Midwinter Recess School Closed 

Thursday, March 12- Parent Teacher 
Conference (Afternoon & Evening) HALF-
DAY 12:30PM DISMISSAL 

Wednesday, March 25- Friday, March 27 
ELA STATE EXAM 

Thursday, April 9-Friday, April 17 Spring 
Recess (including Passover and Good 
Friday) School Closed 
Tuesday, April 21- Thursday, April 23- 
MATH STATE EXAM 

Monday, May 25- Memorial Day School 
Closed 

Friday, June 26- Last Day of School HALF-
DAY 12:30PM DISMISSAL 




